
 MBCSD Agenda 7-28-2021 

MUIR BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
19 Seacape Drive  Muir Beach, CA 94965  415 383 9969  www.muirbeachcsd.com 

AGENDA 

     Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Wednesday, July 28, 2021  7:00 PM 

 Meeting held by Teleconference 

Agenda will be emailed and posted 

Zoom invitation will be emailed  

Muir Beach, CA 94965 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, with both current State and County orders to shelter-in-place, 

along with not allowing for groups to congregate publicly who do not normally shelter together, Governor Newsom 

signed Executive Order N-25-20 “Brown Act During a Pandemic” which allows for the temporary use of 

teleconferencing as a means to hold public meetings to prioritize public safety and health.  The MBCSD will provide 

for public meeting participation via online “Zoom” access with a dial-in option.  The public will be allowed to fully 

participate and provide public comment as well as all Board votes are required to be by roll call.  Public noticing of 

meetings and instructions will use the same resident email address and be posted on your local bulletin boards. 

TIMING OF AGENDA ITEMS:   The Board attempts to hear all items in order as stated on the agenda, however it 

reserves the right to take items out of the order listed at any time during the course of the meeting.  The following 

items will be considered, and any item can be discussed, acted upon, or approved during the course of the meeting. 

SPECIAL NEEDS:   In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the District Manager at 415-388-7804.  Notification 48 hours prior to the 

meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure participation in the meeting. 

7:00 pm Item 1: Call to Order 

Board: Steve Shaffer (Board President), Leighton Hills (Director), Paul Jeschke (Director), David Taylor 

(Director)  

Staff: Mary Halley (District Manager), Chris Gove (Fire Chief), Ernst Karel (Meeting Secretary) 

Item 2: Approval of Agenda 

The following item or items were not included in this agenda, along with the reason for not being 

included.  Pursuant to the Bylaws of the Muir Beach Community Services District, the Board of Directors 

may now by motion require that the item or items be added back to this meeting’s agenda.  Should the 

item or items require research or preparation by staff or by member(s) of the Board of Directors in order 

to be properly heard, the item or items may be deferred to a subsequent meeting.  The motion to approve 

this agenda may be without change or may be to re-include any item or items listed below. 

Item(s) not included in this agenda: 

Item 3: Board Vacancy Appointment and Election of Board Vice-President 

Board will appoint a new Director to serve out the term of the seat vacated on 6/9/21.  The new appointee 

will serve until December 2022.  Board will elect a Board Vice-President to serve until December 2021. 

Item 4: Consent Calendar 

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be either routine or non-controversial and will be 

enacted by a single blanket action of the Board.  Upon request from a Board member or any member of 

Board Packet Page 1



 MBCSD Agenda 7-28-2021 

the public, individual items may be removed from the Consent Calendar in which case they will be 

discussed in the meeting (under Items Removed from the Consent Calendar). 

A. Approval of Draft-Minutes from Regular Board Meeting of 6/23/21.

B. Approval of Quarterly Financial Reports dated 6/30/21.

Item 5: Items Removed from Consent Calendar 

Items moved from the Consent Calendar to the Regular Agenda, if any. 

Item 6: District Manager Report 

District Manager Mary Halley will present brief highlights from her DM report. 

Item 7: Prop 68 Per Capita Project Update and Parking Plan Review 

The engineer’s drawings and cement color-card will be presented by the District Manager for review 

ahead of the application submittal to the County for Design Review, Coastal Permit, CEQA Exemption, 

Encroachment Permit and Prop 68 Per Capita Grant funding.  The funicular (tram) will only require a 

building permit so those plans will be shared with the community at a later date when Michael Moore 

returns from being out of town.  (See attached Muir Beach Parking Plan and Profile) 

Item 8: FY21-22 Final Draft-Budget 

The proposed FY21-22 Final Draft-Budget will be presented by the District Manager for any further 

discussion and final approval.  (See attached FY21-22 Final Draft-Budget) 

Item 9: Public Open Time 

Please note: 

1. Topics should be within the jurisdiction of the CSD (Water, Roads, Fire Protection, & Recreation).

2. The topic should not be elsewhere on the agenda.

3. The Board and staff may only briefly respond to statements and questions (i.e. the legal requirement for

items not posted on an agenda which otherwise informs community members that a topic is up for

discussion and/or action.)

4. Public comments are limited to 3 minutes per speaker, unless waived by the Board.

5. The period for public open time is limited to 10 minutes, unless waived by the Board.

Item 10: Recognitions & Board Member Items 

Board recognitions and pending events of interest to the community. 

Item 11: Adjournment 

Next Agenda Meeting Date:  Wednesday, August 18, 2021 

Next Board Meeting Date:   Wednesday, August 25, 2021 

Board Packet Page 2



 - 1 - 

MUIR BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 1 
Minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 2 

Wednesday, June 23, 2021 3 
 4 
 5 

OFFICIAL MINUTES ONLY UPON APPROVAL 6 
 7 
Prior to approval of these minutes by the Board of Directors in a public meeting, these minutes 8 
are draft only and subject to change. Upon approval by the Board, these minutes become the 9 
Official Minutes of the meeting.  10 
 11 
Item 1: Call to Order  12 
Steve Shaffer called the meeting of the Muir Beach Community Services District Board of 13 
Directors to order at approximately 7:00 pm.   14 
 15 
Directors present: Steve Shaffer (Board President), Leighton Hills (Director), Paul 16 

Jeschke (Director), David Taylor (Director) 17 
 18 
Staff present: Mary Halley, District Manager 19 

Chris Gove, Fire Chief 20 
 Ernst Karel, Meeting Secretary 21 
 22 
Announcement from Shaffer: Director (and Vice President) Peter Lambert has resigned. In the 23 
interim, Lisa Eigsti has asked if she could be considered for a board member. We won’t do 24 
anything at this meeting, but at the next meeting (July) we will discuss her taking Peter’s place. 25 
At the same time the board will elect a new Vice President. Other members of the community 26 
may also put their hat in the ring. 27 
 28 
 29 
Item 2: Approval of Agenda  30 
Item(s) not included in this agenda: None  31 
Rearrangement: Item 10 will follow Item 6.  32 
 33 

MOTION: To approve the agenda, with adjustment in the order  34 
Moved:  Hills, seconded by Taylor 35 

 Vote:   AYES: Unanimous 36 
  37 
 38 
Item 3: Consent Calendar  39 

1. Approval of Draft Minutes from Regular Board Meeting of 5/25/21.  40 
 41 
MOTION: To approve the consent calendar  42 
Moved:  Hills, seconded by Jeschke 43 
Vote:   AYES:  Unanimous 44 
  45 

 46 
Item 4: Items Removed from Consent Calendar 47 
No items removed.  48 
 49 
 50 

Board Packet Page 3



 - 2 - 

Item 5: District Manager Report  1 
District Manager Mary Halley will present brief highlights from her DM report, a written 2 
document which (as always) is included with the monthly meeting packet available online at 3 
http://www.muirbeachcsd.com/meetings.  4 
 5 
Everything is opening up as of June 15, and Marin County is 90% vaccinated.  6 
 7 
We are far below normal water levels in Redwood Creek, and Halley would be surprised if we 8 
are not on mandatory water conservation by the next meter reading, July 16. 9 
 10 
Water team member Ernst Karel has received D1 certification for water distribution, 11 
complementing Stephanie Blank’s T2 certification for water treatment. 12 
 13 
Brief update on Pro 68 Per Capita Grand. It’s gone back and forth with the county, but it looks 14 
like Halley will have to put in for design review, coastal permit, and an encroachment permit. We 15 
do not need a use permit by having our civil engineer design all retaining walls down to four 16 
feet. We continue to move forward with this.  17 
 18 
 19 
Item 6: Fire Chief Report 20 
We continue to train regularly. We have switched over to emphasis on wild land training and 21 
welcome a new volunteer, Jackson Moore he has been with us for about a year but last week 22 
was given a pager so now he can respond to calls. He’s spent the last semester at the College 23 
of Marin earning his EMR certification. 24 
 25 
I have spent the last couple of months working with Zonehaven.  This company has contracted 26 
with MWPA to provide safe evacuation routes in real time during fire emergencies. I’ll be sharing 27 
more in the coming months on their progress and our work with them. 28 
 29 
The MBVFD as a participating agency in MWPA applied for and was awarded a large core 30 
grant.  Core grants are separate from local Measure C funds.  We joined with neighboring 31 
agencies in Southern Marin and the NPS to work on this and are very pleased to announce that 32 
we have been awarded $150,000 to try and solve one of the highest risks of fire danger in our 33 
community.   34 
 35 
The project area is the hillside in the southwest corner of the Banducci Ranch property.  This 36 
sits below all evacuation routes out of Muir Beach and below the majority of homes in our 37 
community.  This is a very steep north facing slope adjacent to an area vulnerable to ignition by 38 
vehicle accident and difficult to access.  The property is part of the GGNRA.   39 
 40 
It will be a multiyear effort and is now in the planning stages and environmental review, we will 41 
be working closely with GGNRA, Caltrans and MWPA to get this accomplished. We hope to 42 
start late spring next year. We are fortunate this has been classified a core project as it is well 43 
above the allocation that we could expect from our tax base. We will be having a public meeting 44 
as soon as we know more. 45 
 46 
As a result of our biannual meeting with the West Marin Chiefs, GGNRA law enforcement and 47 
Supervisor Rodoni’s office we are in discussions to change the parking fines and signage and 48 
also enforcement on Pacific way and HWY 1. It will include all the beach communitys and will 49 
have to be passed by the CSD, the county and the coastal commission. It is going to be a long 50 
haul, but they are finally listening to us. 51 

Board Packet Page 4

http://www.muirbeachcsd.com/meetings


 - 3 - 

As you may have noticed the large piles of branches in front of houses, we are preparing for our 1 
first chipper day this year on 6/28 -- there will be another in September. The Firewise committee 2 
continues to inform the community of our need to be responsible to the threat of wildfire. Last 3 
year we chipped over 600 yards of brush and our neighbors have risen to the challenge. 4 
 5 
As will discussed later tonight we have a Coastal Commission Hearing on 7/1 with Marin County 6 
Planning Department on our new firehouse. We look forward to working with the community to 7 
bring it to completion. 8 
 9 
Thanks for letting me be of service. 10 
Chris Gove, Chief MBVFD 11 
 12 
 13 
Item 10 (re-ordered): Review of Fire House Plans [audio recording: 20:55 – 1:08:57] 14 
The plans for the firehouse were previously presented to the CSD in December 2020 and it was 15 
noted at that time, that the plans were not finalized, and there was as yet no cost estimate, and 16 
that there would be more occasion for public discussion. So now that the story poles have gone 17 
up for the proposed fire house, and with the DZA Coastal Permit hearing scheduled for 18 
7/1/2021, nearby residents are requesting to have a final review of the proposed plans. Items for 19 
discussion may include ecological considerations that it be as small as possible, materials 20 
choice, and that there be energy-generating solar panels included.  21 
 22 
Discussion about the process for continuing with the project. There are questions about details 23 
of the design.  24 
 25 
With regard to the idea of whether the 7/1 county hearing should be postponed pending further 26 
community discussion, Shaffer calls for a motion. 27 
 28 
 MOTION:  To postpone the Marin County Deputy Zoning Administrator Hearing 29 

Moved:  Jeschke 30 
Motion fails for lack of a second. 31 

 32 
 33 
Item 7: MBCC Rental Coordinator 34 
Harvey Pearlman will present his plan to enhance the Rental Coordinator job as part of the 35 
larger discussion on how, if, or when to fill the MBCC Rental Coordinator position.  36 
 37 
Background: At the May 2020 Board Meeting, the Board approved making the MBCC Rental 38 
Coordinator a paid position of $200/month. A solicitation including job description was sent out 39 
several times the following month and did not receive any interested applicants. It was then put 40 
back on the agenda at the July 2020 meeting giving the Board three possible options for 41 
proceeding forward with trying to fill the previously volunteer but now paid vacant position:  42 

a) should the CSD continue to offer the paid position at $200 p/month for another month or 43 
two? 44 

b) should the Board review the current offered salary for the paid position and possible 45 
adjust? (Net rental income FY18/19 = $13,400 / FY19/20 = $11,511 /*FY20/21 = $4,060 46 
*partly closed due to Covid-19) 47 

c) should the Board wait to revisit the issue until the Community Center can reopen again 48 
knowing that rentals likely cannot resume until the position is filled?  49 

At an earlier meeting, Board President Shaffer suggested, that given the ongoing pandemic 50 
lockdown, the Board should just let the issue ride for a few months and the other Board 51 

Board Packet Page 5



 - 4 - 

members agreed. So, as the State looks towards a goal of opening up by mid-June 2021, the 1 
CSD Board is being asked to consider:  2 

1) the need for a MBCC Rental Coordinator, and if so,  3 
2) the appropriate salary to fill the position, and  4 
3) by when would the position need to be filled.  5 

 6 
Following discussion, nothing is decided yet. Harvey and Laurie Piel will discuss privately. In the 7 
meantime, Steve Shaffer asks for any inquiries to be forwarded to him. Basically, the CC is not 8 
for rent for now.  9 
 10 
 11 
Item 8: Flume Water Monitor Incentive Program [audio recording: 1:24:20] 12 
California has officially declared a drought in 41 counties with coastal Marin currently in 13 
‘extreme’ drought conditions according to the U.S. Drought Monitor. Many water districts are 14 
encouraging customers to install a water monitoring device called “Flume” to help 15 
manage/reduce water usage and critical leak detection. The Board is being asked to discuss 16 
what the MBCSD water system can do to encourage residents to install the device. Flume has 17 
proven to reduce a water system’s overall use by as much as 18% by allowing for better 18 
awareness of water usage along with quicker leak detection. DM Halley will present a possible 19 
CSD incentive program that could include a $25 Flume rebate (credited to the customer’s billing 20 
invoice) and a more lenient leak relief policy for residents with a Flume device installed who 21 
then detect, report, and curtail their own leaks within 24 hours from the start of the leak. Director 22 
Hills will review the technical aspects of the Flume device installation and ease of use based on 23 
his own experience with testing and using the device. A Flume device cost approx. $185-$199.  24 
 25 
Hills spoke with representatives of the Flume company, and they’ve found that because people 26 
are more cognizant of their water use, it results in on average an 18% decrease in water usage. 27 
In using the device, Hills personally learned for example that he has a 4-gallon-per-minute 28 
shower head, whereas the legal limit in California is 1.8 gpm. So he’s taking shorter showers. 29 
This kind of benefit is in addition to aiding in discovering leaks. 30 
 31 
The proposal is that we require the top 10 water users to have them. They wouldn’t own them, 32 
but would just use them, unless they voluntarily reimburse the CSD for the cost. If we can get an 33 
18% reduction in the top 10 users, that makes a significant savings. It will also be offered to the 34 
whole community at the price of $185, with the offer of technical support from the CSD water 35 
team with installation and setup. When purchased as a water district, then the water team will 36 
also be able to monitor usage centrally. Another major benefit is the ability to see leaks before 37 
leaked water actually starts emerging from the earth and is visually detected. Hills will craft a 38 
letter to send out to the community describing the Flume pilot project. 39 
 40 
 41 

MOTION: To have a pilot program where the CSD buys 10, plus enough for 42 
however many community members also want to sign up and pay for 43 
them, and that we require that the top 10 users to have these installed on 44 
their meters. 45 

Moved:  Hills, seconded by Taylor 46 
Vote:   AYES:  Unanimous 47 
  48 

 49 
 50 
 51 

Board Packet Page 6



 - 5 - 

Item 9: FY21/22 Draft-Budget  1 
The first reading of the proposed FY21-22 Draft-Budget will be presented by the District 2 
Manager for further discussion and preliminary approval (See FY21-22 Draft-Budget attached). 3 
Approval of the Final FY21-22 Budget to be held on July 28, 2021.  4 
 5 

MOTION: To approve the preliminary budget  6 
Moved:  Hills, seconded by Taylor 7 
Vote:   AYES:  Unanimous 8 
  9 

 10 
Item 11: Public Open Time  11 
Harvey Pearlman would like to thank the board members and Mary Halley for all the effort they 12 
put into making this a great place.   13 
 14 
 15 
Item 12: Recognitions & Board Member Items 16 
Shaffer thanks Peter Lambert for his years of service on the board, and he was a big help to all 17 
of us.  18 
 19 
Chris Gove reiterates that Peter did a great job for lots of years and reminds everyone about the 20 
party on Little Beach this Saturday.  21 
 22 
Paul Jeschke is pleased that Lisa Eigsti has volunteered to be appointed to the board, and 23 
thinks she would be a fine addition, and at the same time would like to encourage anyone else 24 
in the community to volunteer.  25 
 26 
 27 
Item 13: Post-Pandemic CSD Meetings  28 
California as of 6/15/21 has dropped its ‘color-coded’ Covid-19 guidance policy for businesses 29 
and residents to allow for public meetings to once again be held in-person. The CSD will need 30 
to plan for how it will proceed with public Board meetings moving forward.  Board President 31 
Shaffer announced that the next CSD meeting will be held in-person at the MB Community 32 
Center. 33 

 34 
 35 
Item 15: Adjournment      36 
Next Agenda Meeting Date: Wednesday July 21, 2021  37 
Next Board Meeting Date: Thursday, July 28, 2021  38 
 39 
There being no further business to come before the board, the meeting is adjourned. 40 
 41 
Meeting adjourned at 20:57. 42 

Board Packet Page 7



Board Packet Page 8



Board Packet Page 9



Board Packet Page 10



Board Packet Page 11



Board Packet Page 12



Board Packet Page 13



Board Packet Page 14



Board Packet Page 15



Board Packet Page 16



Board Packet Page 17



Board Packet Page 18



Board Packet Page 19



Board Packet Page 20



Board Packet Page 21



Board Packet Page 22



Board Packet Page 23



Board Packet Page 24



Board Packet Page 25



Board Packet Page 26



Board Packet Page 27



Board Packet Page 28



Board Packet Page 29



Board Packet Page 30



7/28/21 District Manager Report – Mary Halley                            

Water, Fire, Recreation, Roads, Finance, and Communications 

General: 

Covid-19 – coronavirus cases are on the uptick again.  Marin County HHS is once again recommending mask wearing 

for indoor gatherings.  CSD July Board meeting will be held by ‘zoom’ out of an abundance of caution. 

Alliance of Coastal Marin Villages (ACMV) – attended quarterly meeting with Supervisor Rodoni on 7/12 – topics 

discussed were drought, fire, LCP and a ‘Dark Sky’ certification presentation.  Muir Beach would likely not qualify for 

a ‘Dark Sky’ certification due to its proximity to San Francisco city lights. 

Board Member news – notice of a CSD Board vacancy was posted in three publicly accessed locations on 7/12/21 – 

which was 15 days prior to the Board appointment at the 7/28 Board meeting as required by CA Govt Code 1780.  

The Board appointment will fill the vacancy for the balance of the current remaining term until December 2022.  The 

Board will also need to elect a new Board Vice-President for the current year which runs until December 2021. 

Water: 

Redwood Creek Stream Monitoring – stream flows have flatlined and isolated pooling has occurred.  MB water 

customers were given notice of Mandatory Water Conservation on 7/13/2021.   The 20 highest water users’ meters 

were read on 7/16 and follow up readings will be taken monthly to make sure they are complying.  

Lower Tank Property – the Green Gulch Farm Stand has returned this summer on Tuesdays at the LT property. 

Well monitoring – given the current drought conditions, the water team has started taking baseline ‘static’ readings 

of the water levels in the 2002 well.  We ordered, and will be installing, a ‘Wellntel ST System’ automatic well 

monitoring device that will allow us to monitor not only the static levels but also the pumping levels and even 

coordinate data with other wells within 5 miles of our wells in our watershed. 

Fire: 

Firehouse – Marin County DZA approved the new MB Firehouse Coastal Permit at the 7/1/2021 hearing. 

Fire Tax – Fire tax paperwork (T1-5) filed for FY21-22.  The tax will be $249 p/eligible parcel (158) this year. 

Recreation: 

MB Community Center – the MBCC has now opened for existing classes with new County recommendations for facial 

coverings for indoor activities.  The playground remains open with no further Covid-19 restrictions as an outdoor 

activity.  Bistro may now be once per month on a Monday morning, but has not resumed as of yet.  Juana (CC 

cleaner) will be out due to surgery for 6 weeks, so Pilar will cover cleaning at the CC for those 6 weeks.  Much echium 

and coyote brush was removed from the MBCC property for the 6/28 ‘chipper day’.  I have also scheduled the MBCC 

property for the September 27 chipper day as well for further clearing.   Still researching fireproof screening material 

for underneath the CC deck as part of our firesafe hardening work on CC property.  It is looking like the screening will 

need to be a combination of redwood lathing covered with some kind of a metal mesh screening material. 

Prop 68 Per Capita Recreation grant – I will be presenting the parking project design and color-card to the community 

and Board for review prior to sending to Marin County Planner Sabrina Cardoza a combined application for Design 

Review, Coastal Permit, and CEQA exemption – which will all be about a 5–6-month process to complete – but hoping 

we can finish before December for the grant application.  Marin County DPW would still oversee our project, as the 

majority of the work is within the Marin County roadway easement, which will also require an Encroachment permit.  

Board Packet Page 31



Trails – am having Cuco replace all of the metal tread support brackets on the lower Ahab to Sunset stairs, as one 

stair has already broken, and all of the brackets are similarly rusted out and likely to break. 

Measure A Funding – we received out first Measure A FY21-22 check for $19,650.36.  This year have split planned 

spending between the MBCC and Park trail work in this year’s Measure A Work Plan.  

Roads: 

Sunset Way Project – (same as last month) still waiting to finish any last payments and tracking costs as required.  

Have not yet received release request for retainer. 

Communications:  

Website – finished updating the financial page with new graphs from the FY20-21 that just closed.  Will also need to 

update new Board member and staff bios and photos.  Have added a new item “Board and Staff Historic Roster” 

created by Maury Ostroff, now on the ‘Contacts and Links’ page.  Then, as always, continuing to update pages and 

post routine documents on the website. 

Muir Beach Directory – is current thru 6/21/21 and continue to post every new updated version on the district 

website ‘Contact and Links’ page. 

Finance: 

Audits – have submitted all documents required for the Worker’s Compensation audit – should be getting a small 

refund back.  Sharry will start sending over previous FY20-21 financials to the District auditor starting in August. 

Budgets – the FY21-22 Draft-Budget was preliminarily approved at the June 23 Board meeting and have submitted 

the minimally revised FY21/22 Draft-Budget for the final approval at the July 2021 Board meeting. 

Water Billing – we have now added water usage data from the 7 previous bi-monthly billing statements to the 

current billing statement so that the customers can better track their usage for both the previous year (6 bi-monthly 

billing periods) plus the same billing period from the prior year to be able to compare with the current billing period. 

Capital Planning – currently the only capital projects in planning are those using grant funding: Measure A, 

Recreation Per Capita OGALS, and the Firehouse. No other major infrastructure projects are being planned until the 

Sunset Way project loan is fully paid off over next two years. 

Insurance – VFIS fire insurance premium was paid in July for the upcoming fiscal year.  

District Office Business – drop-in visitors now allowed again at the MB office since June 15 but facial coverings 

required due to the more recent Marin County HHS recommendation that masks be worn indoors.  The district will 

likely resume in-person Board meetings in August now if the community is ready and Covid-19 guidance doesn’t 

change.  We may also look into how people can still participate in meetings by the Zoom platform if there is any 

interest from members who can’t normally attend in person.  As always, I am continuing to process all District mail 

and work with Sharry to make sure payroll timesheets, routine/event reimbursements, Credit Card expenditures, 

incoming payments and outgoing checks are all processed and expedited between agencies, employees, and vendors 

promptly. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mary Halley 

MBCSD District Manager 

Board Packet Page 32



Board Packet Page 33



Board Packet Page 34



Board Packet Page 35



Board Packet Page 36



Board Packet Page 37



MUIR BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

19 Seacape Drive  Muir Beach, CA 94965  415 383 9969  www.muirbeachcsd.com 

 
 

Draft-Budget 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

Draft-Version for July 28, 2021 Board Meeting 

The proposed FY 21/22 Draft-Budget is being presented to the MBCSD Board for final approval with the 

expectation for only minor input and comment. It is a balanced budget that meets all State mandatory 

minimum requirements including State Proposition 218, along with all CA Constitutional requirements for 

Water Operations, and is based on sound accounting principles and practices. It has been developed as a 

framework to achieve the MBCSD goals and objectives, both present and future, within the constraints of 

revenue sources and strategic planning. 

 

This July 28, 2021 version of the FY21/22 Draft- Budget is projected to have year-end unrestricted funds of 

$43,583 after making the last construction contract retainer payment from the Sunset Way capital spending 

project and the related annual Marin County Treasurer debt payment of $107,080. 

 

The Water Department budget has a mandatory revenue increase of 3.8% based on the San Francisco- 

Oakland-San Jose April 2021 CPI rate for last twelve months as required by the 2019-1 MBCSD Water Rate 

Ordinance. As a result, total projected water service fee revenue will increase by $4,600 from the previous 

year with a year-end projected restricted Water Capital Reserve increasing by $71,270 without any additional 

capital spending. 

 

The Fire Department Measure W revenues should increase by 50% over pandemic levels and will now be 

dedicated to cover a Fire Chief salary. The Fire Department will also benefit from $11,000 Measure C funds 

for vegetation management with an estimated increase in restricted Fire Reserve from $271,967 to $278,774. 

 

Recreational capital spending will stay within a strict Measure A planning budget along with Prop 68 Per 

Capita Project donations.  All other deficit spending for recreational activities and events as of this draft-

budget are not being covered by MBCC rental income due to the current lack of a rental coordinator which is 

a new paid staff position that has been approved by the Board.  The current budget does not include either an 

estimated amount for the rental coordinator salary or rental income. Rental income normally supplements the 

recreational and community activities by about 25-30% with a volunteer rental coordinator. 

 

If the Board and public has any specific item of interest, I am available to answer any questions. 

 

Please note: 

 

• Fire Department Draft-Budget has been reviewed and approved by Fire Chief Chris Gove. 

• This is the final reading of the FY21/22 Draft-Budget for comment and Final Board approval. 

• Final FY21/22 Draft-Budget includes the complete FY20-21 June actuals with small changes to budget 

amounts and balances that were modified to more closely reflect the coming year’s revenues and expenses. 

Board Packet Page 38



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-July 2021

Jul2019-Jun2020 Jul2020-June2021

Gen Revenue Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Property Taxes (Unassigned) 115,000                121,587                125,000                125,276                127,000                

Excess ERAF (Unassigned) 79,000                  91,246                  90,000                  92,228                  92,000                  

Grants/Donation (unassigned) 2,000                    

Interest Income (Unassigned) 100                        451                        80                          40                          40                          

Other Income (Unassigned) -                             601                        

Gen Revenue Total: 194,100               213,284               215,080               220,145               219,040               

Gen Expense Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Audit (includes fees+bookkeeping) F 9,000                    9,676                    * 10,000                  9,198                    * 9,200                    

Bank & Credit Card Fees (District) F 10                          -                             -                             -                             

Bookkeeping F 15,000                  16,873                  15,000                  13,532                  15,000                  

Dues & Memberships F 1,400                    1,712                    2,000                     1,586                    1,600                    

Insurance: Health (DM) F 9,400                    9,246                    * 9,300                     9,561                    * 9,800                    

Insurance: (Blanket+Gen Lb+Umb) F 4,000                    4,524                    4,550                     5,225                    5,300                    

Insurance: WComp (Board) F 70                          83                          90                          76                          80                          

Insurance: WComp (DM) F 1,200                    1,384                    * 1,400                     1,003                    * 1,100                    

Interest Expense (loan) -                             10,500                  10,500                  7,120                    

Legal Fees V 2,500                    59                          9,200                     7,646                    2,500                    

Meetings (inc minutes) F 4,800                    498                        * 3,800                     6,195                    * 3,500                    

Office & Postage F 2,000                    1,419                    * 2,000                     1,414                    * 1,500                    

Other Operating V 500                        306                        500                        282                        500                        

Payroll: Salary (DM) F 72,000                  72,000                  * 72,000                  72,500                  * 78,000                  

Payroll: Employer Taxes (DM) F 5,760                    5,508                    * 5,510                     5,546                    * 5,967                    

Payroll Service: Fees F 2,000                    2,067                    * 2,100                     1,837                    * 1,800                    

Permits & Fees (non-election year) F 2,000                    1,816                    3,000                     2,331                    2,350                    

Repair & Maint (non-department) V 2,000                    -                             1,000                     -                             500                        

Tree Management Program F 8,000                    8,590                    6,000                     -                             6,000                    

Supplies: (non-water) V 1,000                    -                             100                        26                          50                          

Utilities: Telephone (RingCentral) F 250                        246                        250                        399                        400                        

Website, Internet & Doc Mangmt             F 2,000                    225                        * 900                        1,330                    * 700                        

Gen Exp Total: 144,890               136,232               159,200               150,187               152,967               

Gen Balance (Prior to Dept Allocations) : 49,210                 77,052                 55,880                  69,958                 66,073                 

Gen (Dept Allocations): 43,264                 40,809                 42,804                  43,434                 44,627                 

Gen Balance (After Dept Allocations) : 92,474                 117,861               98,684.0              113,392               110,700               

Loan Payment Princ (Marin County 12/5/19 -3/yr) (96,580)                (96,580)                (99,960)                

Gen Balance (After Loan Payment) : 92,474                 117,861               2,104.0                16,812                 10,740                 

                                                                                       General - Revenue and Expenses - 40% of Specific Expenses* Apportioned To Water Department Only                                                           

General Notes:

1.)Apportionment: General Expenses are assigned to departments by the following percentages: General = 60%, Water = 40% *(DM Salary, 

DM Payroll taxes + service, DM Healthcare, DM WC, Audits, Website, Postage and Office, Board Meeting Expenditures incl Minutes)  

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 39



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-July 2021

Jul2019-Jun2020 Jul2020-June2021

Fire Revenue Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Special Parcel Tax for Fire 37,320 37,165                   R 37,570                   37,772                  R 39,342                

Grants/Donations for Fire (Mics) 100                        20,000                   1,000                     

Grants for Fire (Measure C) 11,000                   11,524                  11,500                

Grants for Fire (Measure W) 52,000                   47,165                   R 26,000                   28,578                  R 26,000                

Grants for Fire (VFA Firehouse) CE A 25,000                  A

Grants for Fire (West Marin) 8,400 8,400                     R 8,400                     8,400                     R 8,400                  

Fire Operations incl Cap Imp Rev: 97,720              92,830              102,970           112,274           85,242           

Deduct Cap Imp Revenue: (25,000)                 

Fire Operations Revenue: 97,720                  92,830                  102,970                87,274                 85,242               

Fire Expense Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Dedicated Expenses:

Emergency Preparedness 2,000                     -                              2,000                     -                             500                      

Membership Dues 330                        236                        300                        316                        320                      

Fire Equipment & Tools 6,500                     9,121                     7,000                     8,939                     8,000                  

Fire Training/Certification 4,000                     2,215                     4,000                     1,667                     2,000                  

Fire Truck: Maint/Repairs 6,000                     1,400                     6,000                     169                        10,000                

Grant Spending 40,000                   25,141                   14,420                   -                             11,000                

Insurance: VFIS 5,720                     11,425                   -                              5,700                  

Insurance: WComp 2,800                     2,530                     2,600                     2,395                     2,500                  

Legal Fees 500                        -                              500                        -                             500                      

Payroll: Salary (FC) 2,500                     30,000                

Payroll: Employer Taxes (FC) 192                        2,295                  

Other Operating (Fire) 1,000                     2,172                     1,800                     1,073                     1,200                  

Supplies: Medical 1,280                     444                        1,200                     592                        1,000                  

Supplies: Sta wear/Turnouts/Other 8,000                     589                        1,000                     1,746                     2,000                  

Utilities: Electric 350                        (22)                         300                        262                        270                      

Utilities: Phone, Radio 1,130                     1,790                     1,800                     1,138                     1,150                  

Dedicated Expense Sub-Total: 79,610 57,041 42,920                  20,989                 78,435               

Fire Operations Expense Total: 79,610 57,041 42,920                  20,989                 78,435               

Fire Ops Balance (Restricted Revenue): 18,110                  35,789                  60,050                  91,285                 6,807                 

Fire Department

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 40



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-July 2021

Jul2019-Jun2020 Jul2020-June2021

Rec Revenue Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Community Center Classes 1,200                     1,204                     A 1,080                     -                             A 600                      

Community Center Functions +(XF) 2,800                     -                              A 1,400                     -                             A

Donations and Grants for Rec 1,220                     28,318                  

Measure A Tax 38,579                   38,059                   R 17,495                   37,517                  R 37,442                

Rentals 12,000                   4,610                     6,000                     -                             

Rec Operations Revenue Total: 54,579                  45,093                  25,975                  65,835                 38,042               

Rec Ops non-Measure A Total: 16,000                  7,034                    8,480                    28,318                 600                     

Rec Expense Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Dedicated Expenses:

Community Center Classes 1,000                     1,459                     A 900                        A

Community Center Functions 8,700                     6,273                     A 8,200                     465                       A 8,200                  

Grant Spending (Rec) 1,000                     -                              1,020                    25,668                

Insurance: Wcomp (Rec) 1,050                     1,027                     1,050                     816                       45                        

Legal Fees (Rec) -                              -                              -                              -                             -                           

Measure A Projects 38,579                   40,372                   R 17,495                   37,104                  R 37,442                

Other Operating 100                        -                              200                        -                             100                      

Pay (Maintenance Sub-Contractors) 3,600                    11,400                

Payroll (Rec) 15,000                   15,876                   15,000                   12,476                  2,400                  

Payroll (Rental Coordinator) -                             

Payroll Employer Taxes (Rec) 1,200                     1,215                     1,200                     954                       184                      

Rental Expense (CC) 4,600                     450                        400                        -                             500                      

Repairs & Maintenance (Rec) 4,000                     836                        1,000                     1,434                    1,500                  

Trails Maintenance (budget) 1,500                     3,659                     3,000                     1,750                    3,000                  

Supplies (Rec) 2,500                     727                        1,000                     97                          1,000                  

Utilities: Elec (Rec) 1,200                     380                        800                        672                       800                      

Utilities: Phone (Rec - Ooma) 80                          62                          60                          82                          65                        

Utilities: Propane (Rec) 300                        122                        300                        110                       150                      

Utilities: Refuse (Rec) 800                        892                        1,000                     1,156                    1,200                  

Dedicated Expense Sub-Total: 80,609 74,350 51,605 61,736                 93,653               

Non-Measure A Expense Total: 42,030 33,978 34,110 24,632                 56,211               

Rec Ops Balance (Including Restricted Revenue): 12,549                  (29,257)                (25,630)                4,099                   (55,611)              

Rec Ops Balance (non-Measure A): (26,944)                (25,630)                3,686                   (55,611)              

FY20/21 Captial Spending:

Measure A: CC Deck Roof Panels (8,000)                   (7,063)$                

Measure A: CC Upper  Deck (14,700)                (14,683)$             

Measure A: CC Upper Side Deck (5,000)                   (7,153)$                

Measure A: CC Stonewall (6,000)                   (5,279)$                

Measure A: Volleyball Court Rpr -                             (2,926)$                

Total Capital Spending: (40,372)                (33,700)                (37,104)                -                          

FY21/22 Measure A: CC Oil deck/siding (5,000)                

Measure A: CC Deck Curtain (8,000)                

Measure A: Trail Improvements-SL (10,000)              

Measure A: Trail Improvements-UP (14,000)              

Total Capital Spending: (37,000)              

Recreation Department

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 41



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-July 2021

Jul2019-Jun2020 Jul2020-June2021

Roads Revenue Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Fees for Roads -                              

Donations for Roads 60,000                   

Grants for Roads -                              

Loans for Roads (Marin County) 300,000                 

Roads Operations Revenue Total: 360,000                -                            -                           -                          

Roads Expense Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Dedicated Expenses:

Grant spending (Roads) -                            

Insurance: Wcomp (Roads) 150                        155                        155                       118                       -                           

Legal Fees (Roads) -                              -                            

Other Operating (Roads) -                              -                            

Pay (Maintenance Sub-Contractors) 1,000                   

Payroll (Roads) 3,000                     4,228                     4,000                    2,556                   -                           

Payroll Employer Taxes (Roads) 240                        323                        310                       196                       -                           

Repairs & Maint (Gen Exp/Roads) 25,000                   11,910                   15,000                  5,336                   10,000                

Supplies (Roads) -                              100                       95                         

Dedicated Expense Sub-Total: 28,390                  16,616                  19,565                 8,301                  11,000               

Roads Operations Expense Total: 28,390                  16,616 19,565 8,301                  11,000               

Roads Ops Balance (Unassigned Revenue): (28,390)                343,384                (19,565)               (8,301)                 (11,000)              

Captial Spending:

Sunset Way Project (716,315)               (969,443)               (52,882)                (33,305)                (40,000)               

Total Capital Spending: (716,315)              (969,443)              (52,882)               (33,305)               (40,000)              

Roads Department

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 42



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-July 2021

Jul2019-Jun2020 Jul2020-June2021

Water Revenue Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Water Service Fee Revenue fv 172,115                 161,020                 A 174,000                 187,315               180,600             

Water Conservation Discount (52,000)                 (42,533)                 (52,500)                 (56,589)                (54,500)              

Meter Reading Fee + Bookkpg F 7,400                     6,185                     A 7,660                     7,442                   7,860                  

Water Service Revenue (Misc) V 500                        765                        A 500                        2,030                   500                     

Water Service Fee Net Revenue 128,015                 119,252                 129,660                 132,756               134,460             

Water Cap Impr  (Meter Charge) F 68,000                   57,585                   A 68,660                   69,272                 71,270               

Cap Impr (25% of Service) 3,867                     -                          

Other Income V 13,000                   6,500                     6,500                  

Grants/Donations/Loans (Water) V -                              16,750                   -                              6,000                   -                          

Water Revenue incl Cap Imp: fv 196,015 210,454                204,820 208,028               212,230             

Move Cap Impr to Reserves: F (68,000)                 (57,585)                 (68,660)                 (69,272)                (71,270)              

Move 25% CPI Service to  Reserves:V (3,867)                    -                            

Move Service Revenue (Misc) (16,750)                 

Water Cap Impr+ 25%CPI Reveues: (68,000)                (78,202)                (68,660)                (69,272)               (71,270)             

Water Operations Revenue: 128,015 132,252                136,160 138,756              140,960            

           Water Cap Impr Reserves: 68,000                  78,202                  68,660                  69,272                71,270              

Water Expense Category FY19/20 Budget FY19/20 Actual FY20/21 Budget FY20/21 Actual FY21/22 Budget

Gen Exp (40% Specific*) Sub-Total: F 43,264 40,809 42,804 43,434                44,627              

Dedicated Expenses:

Bank Credit Card Fees (Customer) V 4,400                     5,167                     5,150                     4,836                   5,150                  

Bookkeeping (Water) V 4,500                     5,721                     5,000                     4,930                   5,460                  

Debt (Due to DT-10 years/no int) -                              -                              -                            3,350                  

Debt (Due to GF-20 years/no int) 2,600                     -                              2,600                     -                            2,600                  

Dues & Memberships (Water) F 400                        443                        450                        443                       450                     

Grant Spending V -                              -                            

Insurance (Water-G Liab+ % Umb) F 2,000                     2,261                     2,300                     2,444                   2,500                  

Insurance:  Wcomp (Water) F 1,580                     1,308                     1,310                     1,165                   1,000                  

Legal Fees (Water) V 2,000                     1,305                     1,000                     -                            1,000                  

Other Operating (Water) V 500                        885                        500                        16                         500                     

Pay (Water Sub-Contractors) V -                              -                              -                            700                     

Payroll (Compromise - WM) F 5,000                     5,000                     5,000                     5,000                   5,000                  

Payroll (Other Water Salaries) F 500                        1,100                     1,100                     220                       -                          

Payroll (Water Team) F 28,790                   29,447                   29,400                   29,307                 29,400               

Payroll Employer Taxes (Water) F 2,430                     2,337                     2,340                     2,259                   2,249                  

Permits & Fees (Water) F 1,360                     1,366                     1,370                     1,366                   1,370                  

Repairs & Maintenance (Water) V 15,000                   18,885                   21,000                   14,034                 15,000               

Testing (Water) non-full panel yr V 3,600                     4,604                     2,800                     2,305                   2,500                  

Treatment (Water) V 5,000                     4,613                     4,500                     3,434                   5,000                  

Utilities: Elec (Water) V 11,700                   12,915                   13,300                   11,730                 12,100               

Utilities: Tel (Ooma) F 340                        360                        370                        360                       380                     

Dedicated Expense Sub-Total: 91,700 97,717 99,490 83,849                95,709              

Water Operations Expense Total: 134,964 138,526 142,294 127,283              140,336            

Water Conservation Reserve (Beginning Balance): 52,000 52,000                  52,500                  52,500                54,500              

Water Conservation Discount (Balance to Reserve): (52,000)                (42,533)                (52,500)                (56,589)               (54,500)             

Water Conservation Reserve (Ending Balance): -                        -                        (4,089)                 -                         

Water Ops Balance (Assigned Revenue): (6,949)                   (6,274)                   (6,134)                   11,473                625                    

Water Capital Improvement (Balance to Reserves): 68,000                  78,202                  68,660                  69,272                71,270              

Water Capital Improvement Beg Balance (Reserves): 180,229                180,229                36,687                  36,687                81,197              

Water Capital Improvement (SWP) Spending: (218,505)              (213,326)              -                         

Water Capital Improvement (GL) Spending: (25,429)                (13,828)               -                         

Water Capital Improvement (Well Pump) Spending: (11,000)                (10,934)               -                         

Loan Payment (DT 5-2020/ $16,750 / 10yr/0% int): -                           

Water Capital Improvement (Reserves): 14,497                  (107,979)              81,197                152,467            

Notes: Meter Reading charge $2400 + Water bookkeeping $5460 = $7860 

Water Department

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 43



Muir Beach Community Services District: Budget for FY 2021/2022 - Draft-June 2021

MUIR BEACH CSD 2021/22 FULL YEAR CASH PROJECTIONS
Total

Fire Recreation Roads General Govt Svc Water Total
     

Beginning Cash Balance as of 6/30/21 271,967$      24,648$        -$              185,019$      481,634$      (40,254)$       562,831$         

Sources of Income

Income -$              600$             -$              219,040$      219,640$      140,960$      360,600$         

Expenses (78,435)$       (56,211)$       (11,000)$       (108,340)$     (253,987)$     (95,709)$       (349,695)$       

Overhead Allocation from Gen. -$              -$              -$              -$              (44,627)$       (44,627)$          

 

Net Income from Operations (78,435)$       (55,611)$       (11,000)$       110,700$      (34,347)$       625$             (33,722)$          

Depreciation -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Non-Cash Transactions -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$                 

 

Tax/Fee Initiatives 39,342$        -$              -$              -$              39,342$        -$              39,342$           

Grants 45,900$        37,442$        -$              -$              83,342$        -$              83,342$           

Other (WCI reserve) -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              71,270$        71,270$           

  

Total Sources 6,807$          (18,169)$       (11,000)$       110,700$      88,337$        71,895$        160,232$         

 

Uses of Income  

Capital Expenditures -$              (37,442)$       (39,567)$       -$              (77,009)$       (77,009)$          

Transfer of Water Funds to WCI -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              (71,270)$       (71,270)$          

County Loan Payment (12/5/2019) (99,960)$       (99,960)$       (99,960)$          

Total Uses -$              (37,442)$       (39,567)$       (99,960)$       (176,969)$     (71,270)$       (248,239)$       

Change in Cash Flow from Operations 6,807$          (55,611)$       (50,567)$       10,740$        (88,632)$       625$             (88,007)$          

 

Ending Cash Balance (projected 6/30/22) 278,774$      (30,963)$       (50,567)$       195,759$      393,002$      (39,630)$       474,824$         

 

Net Operating Income/Loss from Water Dept  

WCI - Beginning Cash Balance 6/30/21 81,197$        

Funds moved into WCI Fund 71,270$        

WCI - Loan payments -$              

Capital Expenditures

WCI Cash Balance (projected 6/30/22) 152,467$      

Amount Owed to Government Svc (2021/2022 only) (32,883)$       

Debt payment 2,600$          

Net Operating Income/Loss 625$             

Projected Debt Balance 6/30/22 (29,659)$       

1. Capital Expenditures:  A. Measure A: $37,441

B. SWP -Apprx. Bal due 6/30/20: $39,567

C. Prop 68 Rec Project $25,668

D. Loan Payments

2. Restricted Funds Projected Balance 6/30/22 278,774$      152,467$      431,241$         

3. Assigned Funds Projected Balance 6/30/22 (29,659)$       

4. Unrestricted Funds Projected Balance 6/30/22 43,583$           

7/23/2021 Board Packet Page 44


	MBCSD July 28 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Minutes_Draft_2021-06-23
	2021-6 Financial Reports
	DM Report for 7-28-21 Mary
	Muir Beach Parking Plan and Profile-BP
	MBCSD_Budget Cover-July2021
	MBCSD Budget for FY 2021-2022_Draft-July 2021



